




Agenda 
Item 1 



No 
Documentation 

for this Item 



Agenda 
Item 2 



No 
Documentation 

for this Item 



Agenda 
Item 3 





BCESD3, December 8, 2025, District Board Meeting 1 

MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 8, 2025, DISTRICT MEETING 
BRAZORIA COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT NO. 3 

A meeting was duly called of the BRAZORIA COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT 

NO. 3, which was held on December 8, 2025, at the District Administration Office, 6931 Masters 

Road, Manvel, Texas 77578. 

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 P.M. by DARRELL VALUSEK, District President. 

The Commissioners present were DARRELL VALUSEK, FRANK HAGDORN, MATT GLAVES, GEORGE 

BULLINGTON and DE WAYNE DAVIS.  Also present were District Executive Director Jeff Braun, 

legal counsel John Peeler, ESD 3 Fire Services Administrator Jack Helton, District CPA Randall Parr, 

Administrative Director Cindy Reaves, other District Staff, representatives of the District’s 

contracted providers, and members of the community.  

The Board opened the floor to receive public comment under agenda item 2.  No 

comments were provided.   

The Board then addressed agenda item 3, Consent Agenda – the following items are 

considered routine by the Board and will be enacted by one motion.  No separate discussion will 

occur on these items unless a Commissioner so requests, in which event, the item will be removed 

and placed on the Non-Consent Agenda: 

a. Approve minutes of the prior meeting.

i. November 10, 2025 – District Meeting.

b. Approve financial and bookkeeping matters, including payment of the bills and

review of reports concerning the District’s financial condition and investments.

Commissioner Glaves made a motion to approve all items as presented.  The motion was 

seconded by Commissioner Bullington.  The motion was approved by a vote of 5 to 0. 

The Board then addressed agenda item 4, Non-Consent Agenda – items removed from 

the Consent Agenda.  No items were removed, no action taken. 

The Board proceeded to agenda item 5, to review and act to approve the donation of 

expired and unused PPE to Medical Bridges.   Jeff Braun, Executive Director, spoke to the Board 

about items the District EMS received free of charge from SETRAC and the Brazoria County Health 

Department during the pandemic for personal protection and how it was not used and has since 

expired.  Medical Bridges is able to repurpose such items and provide aid to underserved 



BCESD3, December 8, 2025, District Board Meeting 2 

communities.  Commissioner Glaves made a motion to approve as presented.  The motion was 

seconded by Commissioner Hagdorn.  The rate increase was approved by a vote of 5 to 0. 

The Board then addressed agenda item 6, to review and act to approve the purchase of 

two ambulances.  Item 6a is a revision to the original purchase of an ambulance to replace a 2016 

Ford Ambulance.  Jeff Braun, Executive Director, relayed to the Board the additional safety items 

added to the ambulance along with the selection of the manufacturer and chassis.  As for agenda 

item 6b, Mr. Braun discussed the need to purchase a second ambulance due to an accident that 

the 2023 International Ambulance had been involved in back in September.  The ambulance has 

been deemed non-repairable by the insurance company.  The recommendation is to place an 

order for the ambulance now to be able to lock in the 2025 pricing with the delivery of the vehicle 

in late 2026.  Commissioner Glaves made a motion to approve items a and b as presented.  The 

motion was seconded by Commissioner Davis.  The motion was approved by a vote of 5 – 0.  

The Board then addressed agenda item 7, to review and act to approve an increase in EMS 

billing fees.  Jeff Braun, Executive Director, notified the Board that there has not been an increase 

in billing fees since 2020 even though operating costs have increased and medical supplies have 

escalated over the past five years by a rate of ten to fifteen percent each year.  The EMS division 

has expanded its capabilities by adding a pre-hospital blood program, advanced diagnostic 

capabilities for field supervisors along with new medications and treatment modalities. 

Commissioner Glaves made a motion to approve the 15% increase as presented by staff.  The 

motion was seconded by Commissioner Hagdorn.  The motion was approved by a vote of 5 – 0. 

The Board then addressed agenda item 8, to review and take action on matters related to 

construction, renovation, repair, and improvements to District facilities and real property, 

including engagement of design professionals or engineering services, selection of 

builders/contractors, approve of construction financing.  Jeff Braun, Executive Director, spoke 

about the Building Committee meeting held in October 2025 regarding the Rodeo Palms Fire 

Station.  A directive was given to David Slattery to provide an updated program for the site to 

include a three-bay station and explore alternative building systems.  The architectural agreement 

was submitted for approval with Slattery Tackett Architects, LLP that included the benchmark 

schedule for the project and to authorize Jeff Braun, Executive Director, to execute documents.  



BCESD3, December 8, 2025, District Board Meeting 3 

Commissioner Hagdorn made a motion to approve the contract and authorize execution as 

presented.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Glaves.  The motion was approved by a 

vote of 5 – 0.  Mr. Braun continued to inform the Board of the need to request a zoning variance 

from the City of Manvel to facilitate the construction of the vehicle maintenance facility on the 

property behind EMS Station.  Discussion was had as to the necessity of the facility.   In order to 

fulfill that request to the City of Manvel, Jeff Braun, Executive Director, and David Slattery, Slattery 

Tackett Architects, LLP, would need approval from the Board.  Commissioner Davis made a motion 

to approve as presented.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Glaves.  The motion was 

approved by a vote of 5 – 0. 

The Board then addressed agenda item 9, to receive a report on District EMS operations 

from District EMS Captain, Melissa Aldape, in the absence of EMS Chief, Tim Welch.  Captain 

Aldape acknowledged outstanding patient care and compassion from crew members from a call 

back in October and another crew responded to in November. She spoke about collaborative 

training with Danbury EMS at the cadaver lab.  The EMS Division is participating in the regional 

and local planning sessions for the FIFA Cup for 2026.  Chief Lammert and Captain Aldape will be 

attending a meeting on December 9th for continual planning.  Captain Aldape discussed the 

possible need to staff Medic 74 during this event to cover the extra call volume.  She talked about 

the progress being made by Priority One with the clean up of data. 

The next item to be addressed by the Board is agenda item 10, to receive a report on 

District Fire operations from District Fire Services Administrator, Jack Helton.  Mr. Helton went 

over fire division updates regarding the completion of fire hose testing, bi-annual breathing air 

maintenance and generator testing and maintenance.  The bid process is in progress for SCBA 

maintenance, hose testing, ladder testing and PPE cleaning and testing.  He went over the 

maintenance being performed or completed with the District’s fleet.  In the update regarding the 

facilities, he spoke of the quarterly pest control that was completed and the generator 

maintenance that has been completed.  Mr. Helton discussed the leveling of the parking lot at 

EMS Station 1 and the removal of the bay doors that have been removed for the remodeling of 

the building.  He went over the data in relation to the number of responses per provider and the 

comparison between 2024 to 2025. 



BCESD3, December 8, 2025, District Board Meeting 4 

The Board then addressed agenda item 11, to receive the Communications report from 

Cindy Reaves, Administrative Director.  Mrs. Reaves talked about the video that was posted and 

the number of hits it had received.  She mentioned to the Board that her plan is to post more of 

the same type of videos from other staff, Commissioners, etc. in the future.  She went over the 

communication outreach numbers.  She reported on the three chamber events she had attended 

and reminded the Commissioners of the State of the City of Iowa Colony in January. 

Commissioner Glaves congratulated Cindy on her election to the Alvin Chamber of Commerce. 

The Board then addressed agenda item 12, to receive an update on operations and 

administration from Executive Director, Jeff Braun.  Mr. Braun mentioned the changes Randall 

Parr, District CPA, has made to the structure of the finance report making it easier to read and 

find information.  He spoke of a meeting he has scheduled with Representative Jeff Barry for 

January 15, 2026 to discuss the ESD.  It is in the works to schedule a meeting with Commissioner 

Burridge to discuss the ESD and what is going on in the District and his precinct.  The building 

committee met to receive updates and information for moving forward with the renovations at 

EMS Station 1.  Jeff talked about current and upcoming projects within the district.   At the end 

of his report, a picture was taken of the Commissioners and staff with the Blue Santa box filled 

with toys that have been donated for a wonderful cause. 

The Board then addressed agenda item 13, to meet in Closed Session under Government 

Code 551.071, 551.072 and 551.074 to consult with legal counsel regarding pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers or on matters which require confidentiality under the 

Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas, to deliberate regarding 

real property and to deliberate regarding personnel matters, including appointment, 

employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of District personnel. 

The Board moved to Closed Session at 7:46 P.M. 

The Board reconvened in Open Session at 9:06 P.M. 

The Board returned to address agenda item 14, to review and act on a request from the 

Brazoria County Sheriff to enter into a mutual aid agreement, pursuant to HB33.  Commissioner 

Davis made a motion to approve as presented.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner 

Hagdorn.  The motion was approved by a vote of 5 – 0. 



BCESD3, December 8, 2025, District Board Meeting 5 

The Board proceeded to address agenda item 15, to review and take any action regarding 

real estate, including sale, purchase, lease, platting, utilities, encumbrances, maintenance and 

legal actions related to real estate.  No action taken, no vote taken. 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:07 P.M.    

_____________________________ 

Matt Glaves, Secretary/Treasurer   





BCESD3, December 30, 2025, District Board Meeting 1 

MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 30, 2025, DISTRICT MEETING 
BRAZORIA COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT NO. 3 

A meeting was duly called of the BRAZORIA COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT 

NO. 3, which was held on December 30, 2025, at the District Administration Office, 6931 Masters 

Road, Manvel, Texas 77578. 

The meeting was called to order at 2:01 P.M. by DARRELL VALUSEK, District President. 

The Commissioners present were DARRELL VALUSEK, FRANK HAGDORN, MATT GLAVES, GEORGE 

BULLINGTON and DE WAYNE DAVIS.  Also present were District Executive Director Jeff Braun, 

Administrative Director Cindy Reaves, other District Staff, representatives of the District’s 

contracted providers, and members of the community.  

The Board opened the floor to receive public comment under agenda item 3.  No 

comments were provided.   

The Board then addressed agenda item 4, to review and act to extend the Emergency 

Service Provider contracts.  Jeff Braun, Executive Director, spoke to the Board of the necessity to 

extend the existing 2025 Interlocal Agreement for Alvin Fire and EMS.  He explained the changes 

going on with the City of Alvin with their Departments being re-located to allow for construction 

at their current location.  The resolution is set to extend the current agreement for one month. 

Commissioner Hagdorn made a motion to approve the extension as presented.  The motion was 

seconded by Commissioner Bullington.  The motion was approved by a vote of 4 to 0, with 1 

abstention by Commissioner Glaves. 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:11 P.M.    

_____________________________ 

Matt Glaves, Secretary/Treasurer   



Agenda 
Item 3b 







































































Agenda 
Item 3c 





Page 35 of 116

2025 TAX ROLL SUMMARY 44 - BC EMERGENCY SERVICES #3

October 06, 2025Run Date: Brazoria County Tax Office

MARKET  VALUES

NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS

Amount Count

 66,353

ROLLCODE: MINERAL
Mineral $107,406,734

ROLLCODE: MOBILE HOME
Improvement $157,876,492

Improvement Non-Home Site $1,940,980

ROLLCODE: PERSONAL
Personal $1,489,587,690

ROLLCODE: REAL
Agriculture $2,080,319,396

Improvement $8,216,135,977

Improvement Non-Home Site $4,100,460,854

Land $2,593,227,612

Land Ag Land $34,596,619

Land Non-Home Site $1,679,463,387

TOTAL MARKET VALUE $20,461,015,741

DEFERRALS
Ag $2,079,353,756  5,254

TOTAL DEFERRALS $2,079,353,756

EXEMPTIONS
23.231 Circuit Breaker Limitation $149,149,589  3,255

Cap Adjustment $485,707,771  8,144

Disabled $4,039,470  451

Disabled Veteran $8,942,541  1,037

DVHS $523,000,746  1,201

Freeport $56,611,872  17

Homestead $0  180

Miscellaneous $1,013,429,699  1,671

Over 65 $63,433,807  6,894

Personal Use Vehicle $52,804,380  266

Pollution Control $26,865,990  12

Solar/Wind $2,262,500  81

Spouse First Responder $662,078  2

Surv Spouse DVHS $14,742,106  43

Surviving Spouse Disabled Person $0  2

Surviving Spouse Over 65 $1,445,000  161

TOTAL EXEMPTIONS $2,403,097,549

GRAND TOTAL FOR DEFERRALS AND EXEMPTIONS 

TOTAL MARKET VALUE 

TAXABLE VALUE 

$20,461,015,741

$15,978,564,436

$4,482,451,305

TAX RATE 0.079229

ROLLCODE: MINERAL
Levy $84,159.48  7,071

ROLLCODE: MOBILE HOME
Levy $118,222.48  3,026

TaxRollSummary.rpt Revised October 06, 2025



Page 36 of 116

2025 TAX ROLL SUMMARY 44 - BC EMERGENCY SERVICES #3

October 06, 2025Run Date: Brazoria County Tax Office

ROLLCODE: PERSONAL
Levy $1,090,099.53  3,858

Rendition Penalty $2,547.54  528

ROLLCODE: REAL
LateAg $86.10  10

Levy $11,367,178.55  52,398

TOTAL LEVY $12,662,293.68

$0.00LEVY LOST DUE TO FROZEN

$0.00OTHER LOST LEVY

$0.00TOTAL LOST LEVY

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0  0  0Frozen

Calc Levy -  Tax Amount = Diff. Market Value Exemption Taxable Value

DV100 (Excl. Frozen)

Prorated (Excl. Frozen

Other

 4,180.89  4,180.89  0.00  547,219,791  523,000,746  24,219,045

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0  0  0

 12,655,479.15  12,655,479.15  0.00  19,913,795,950  3,959,450,559  15,954,345,391

Total

Calculation Analysis

 12,659,660.04  12,659,660.04  0.00  20,461,015,741  4,482,451,305  15,978,564,436

DV100 (Incl. Frozen)

Prorated (Incl. Frozen

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0  0  0

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0  0  0

TaxRollSummary.rpt Revised October 06, 2025



Agenda 

Item 4 



No 
Documentation 

for this Item 



Agenda 
Item 5 





Agenda 
Item 6 











Agenda 
Item 7 





Agenda 
Item 8 





Quote # 0000150

Quote Date 01/01/2026

Brandan Lara
Southern Renovations of Texas LLC

Jack Helton
2219 Sixth St
Liverpool, TX 77577
United States

Jhelton@bcesd3.com
832-621-9457

QUOTE

Item Description Unit Price Quantity Amount

Service Truck Bay Renovations 18000.00 1.00 18,000.00

NOTES: Fire Truck Bay Project

1- Extend bay 8’ deep by 40’ long
2- Concrete 4k psi 3/8 rebar
3- Metal structure for building extension
4- Extend 8’ roof from existing pitch
5- 12’ walls and back of new construction

Install two bay heaters
1- Install 2 heaters on each end of bay
2- Run electrical 220 to existing main panel

Project time 2 weeks
All debris will be removed off site

Subtotal 18,000.00

Total 18,000.00

Amount Paid 0.00

Quote $18,000.00



Agenda 
Item 9 





Agenda 
Item 10 





Brazoria County Emergency Services District No. 3 

New 

January 2026 Ballistic Vests 

BCESD 3 Standard Operating Practices Page 1 of 3 

Purpose 
The purpose of this SOP is to provide guidelines for the proper use of department issued ballistic vests. 

Applicability 
This SOP applies to all BCESD 3 employees and volunteers. 

Policy 
At its option BCESD 3 may provide appropriately sized ballistic protective equipment to personnel who 
respond and are exposed to risks during civil unrest, active shooter incidents, or similar events where 
there are reasonably foreseen threats. All members are required to wear or use all protective ensembles, 
ensemble elements, and other protective equipment specific to the operation in which members are 
engaged. 

Definitions 
Ballistic Protective Equipment (BPE), also Body Armor or Protective Vest. A garment that offers a 
degree of protection from firearm ammunition or explosive shrapnel. Since it is not designed to be 
specifically fitted to the individual, offers adjustability for a range of sizes, and may be worn on a 
constant/daily basis. The BPE provided by BCESD 3 is a threat-level Type III (rifle protection) as defined 
by the National Institute of Justice (NIJ) Standard 0101.06. The ensemble includes a hard front and rear 
plate which also affords the wearer some protection from an edged weapon.  

Cold Zone. An area surrounding the "Warm Zone" where first responders can operate without concern 
of danger or threat to their personal safety or health. BPE is not needed in cold zone operations.  

High Risk Situation. A circumstance where the chance of injury or death is greater than in a normal 
situation, due to aggravating circumstances, such as known or threatened weapon use. 

Hot Zone. Area typically reserved for police and tactical EMS personnel where an ACTIVE threat 
persists. Fire/EMS personnel will not knowingly be sent into an active threat area. The intent is to 
minimize the area directly impacted by the Hot Zone to allow a Warm Zone to be established adjacent 
to, but not in the immediate area of the hot zone to create access to victims.  

Peace Officer, law enforcement officer. A person elected, employed, or appointed to preserve the 
peace within the officer's jurisdiction including but not limited to sheriffs, constables, and their deputies; 
marshals or police officers; DPS troopers and officers; and others commissioned as peace officers by 
State or Federal government. 

Rescue Task Force (RTF). Protective formation of law enforcement personnel integrated with Fire and 
EMS Department personnel for point of wounding medical stabilization and expedient extraction within 
the Warm Zone. This team may transition into an extraction team as needed by the Incident Commander. 



Brazoria County Emergency Services District No. 3 

New 

January 2026 Ballistic Vests 

BCESD 3 Standard Operating Practices Page 2 of 3 

Tactical Emergency Casualty Care (TECC). The medical management of casualties under hostile 
conditions, expecting limited equipment, limited patient assessment, and limited treatment until the 
patient is removed from the Warm Zone or the threat is eliminated.  

Warm Zone. Any operational area with a potential threat to personal safety or health. The Warm Zone 
typically exists between the Hot Zones and the Cold Zones. 

Scenes of Violence, Civil Unrest, or Terrorism 

General Information 

1. Violent situations, domestic or civil disturbances, active shooter, or similar incidents where

ballistic protective equipment (BPE) is required shall be considered special operations and

essentially a law enforcement event.

2. BCESD 3 crews that provide support to law enforcement special weapons and tactics (SWAT)

operations shall receive special training together initially and at least annually.

3. BCESD 3 shall develop and maintain, in conjunction with local law enforcement agencies:

a. Written standard operating procedures that:

i. Establish a standardized approach to the safety of members, and that shall

govern the roles and responsibilities at incidents that involve violence, active

shooters, unrest, or civil disturbance.

ii. Describe the training and safety of BCESD 3 crews for such operations.

b. An interagency agreement with its law enforcement agency counterpart to provide

protection for fire department members at situations that involve violence.

c. A standard communication method that indicates that a BCESD 3 crew is faced with a

life-and-death situation requiring immediate law enforcement intervention.

During situations that involve or are likely to involve violence 

1. BCESD 3 and law enforcement shall:

a. establish a single command post (CP) and operate using unified command (UC).

b. Use common communications and clear text terminology.

c. Consider secondary devices at the main scene and secondary scenes near the main

scene.

d. Consider fire hazards secondary to the initial blast of incendiaries or explosives.

e. Coordinate activities throughout the incident.



Brazoria County Emergency Services District No. 3 

New 

January 2026 Ballistic Vests 

BCESD 3 Standard Operating Practices Page 3 of 3 

2. BCESD 3 members at the scene SHALL NOT:

a. Become involved in any activities without the confirmed presence of law enforcement

personnel who have deemed the scene secure.

b. Be used for crowd control or dispersal purposes.

c. Be issued or use BPE unless trained and qualified to use such equipment.

3. BCESD 3 members assigned to a rescue task force (RTF) should be trained and equipped at

a minimum with the following:

a. BPE protective vest and Level IIA ballistic helmet

b. Flashlight, medical exam gloves, and radio with remote microphone and earpiece

4. The BCESD 3 Incident Commander shall:

a. Identify and react to situations that do involve or are likely to involve violence.

b. Communicate directly with the law enforcement IC to ensure the safety of BCESD 3

members.

c. Direct or withdraw all BCESD 3 resources to a safe staging area unless the law

enforcement agency has (1) secured the scene, or (2) is providing immediate and

continuous protection of all BCESD 3 members.



Agenda 
Item 11 





Brazoria County 

Emergency Services District No. 3 

 DARRELL VALUSEK, PRESIDENT      GEORGE BULLINGTON, ASST SECRETARY 
 FRANK HAGDORN, VICE-PRESIDENT   DE WAYNE DAVIS, ASST TREASURER 
 MATT GLAVES, SECRETARY-TREASURER    JEFF BRAUN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

6931 Masters ROAD / PO Box 1253 

Manvel, Texas 77578 

281-519-8779 

Insured: Brazoria County Emergency Services District No. 3 

Claim Number: TXCM25120050 

Date of Loss:  11/28/2025 

Owner: Brazoria County Emergency Services District No. 3 

Year/Make/Model: 2008 Pierce Pumper Tanker  

VIN:  2NKMHN8X28M223758 

KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT, I, the undersigned, do hereby make, 

constitute and appoint National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburg, Pa. or any of its 

agents, my true and lawful Attorney for me and in my name to execute and to sign my name to 

assignments of titles, transfers of titles, applications for titles or any other forms involving title to 

above motor vehicle. 

This power of attorney shall remain in effect until such time as the title to this motor vehicle is out 

of my name, hereby ratifying and confirming all that the said Attorney or substitutes shall do 

therein by virtue of these presents. 

I affirm that I have the authority to execute this Power of Attorney on behalf of Brazoria County 

Emergency Services No. 3. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal. 

By: _________________________ 

Darrell Valusek, District President 

6931 Masters Road 

Manvel, TX 77578 

State of Texas  § 
County of Brazoria § 

One the _____ day of _______________, 2026, before me come the signers of the foregoing 
statement, to me known to be the individuals described in, and who executed the foregoing 
statement, and acknowledged that they executed the same. 

My Commissioner Expires ______________, _____. 

__________________________________________ 
Notary Signature 



Brazoria County 

Emergency Services District No. 3 

 DARRELL VALUSEK, PRESIDENT      GEORGE BULLINGTON, ASST SECRETARY 
 FRANK HAGDORN, VICE-PRESIDENT   DE WAYNE DAVIS, ASST TREASURER 
 MATT GLAVES, SECRETARY-TREASURER    JEFF BRAUN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

6931 Masters ROAD / PO Box 1253 

Manvel, Texas 77578 

281-519-8779 

RE:  Insured: Brazoria County Emergency Service District No 3 

Policy Number: VFNUCM0003826-05 

Claim Number:  TXCM25120050 

Date of Loss:  11/28/2025 

Description:  2008 Pierce Pumper Tanker/ VIN: 2NKMHN8X28M223758 

To whom it may concern: 

At the Board of Commissioners meeting held on January 12, 2026, the Board of Commissioners of Brazoria 

County Emergency Services District No. 3 granted authority to the District President Darrell Valusek and 

District Executive Director Jeff Braun to each execute any and all documents individually which may be 

necessary to perfect the insurance claim on the above referenced vehicle. 

As Board Secretary, I, Matt Glaves, affirm this grant of authority by the Board of Commissioners, which 

allows Darrell Valusek or Jeff Braun authority to execute any necessary documents.  

Signature of Authorizing Officer, Matt Glaves, District Secretary: 

(signature)     (date) 

Name of designated individual: Darrell Valusek, District President 

Signature of authorized individual:  

(signature)     (date)

Name of designated individual: Jeff Braun, District Executive Director 

Signature of authorized individual:  

(signature) (date)



Agenda 
Item 12 



No 
Documentation 

for this Item 



Agenda 
Item 13 



BCESD 3 EMS Division Report 
2025 Year-End Report

&
2026 Initiatives



BCESD 3 EMS In Action



One Team, One Vision, One Mission 
“Saving Lives”

" A Grateful Patient" – Lt. Taylor Cheek & Merritt Boozer
A patient called in September about his transport that occurred in January. He wanted to make sure the crew received praise for his transport. The caller said     
“He did not know who was in the ambulance, but he is very thankful to the staff and their ability to get him to the VA hospital. Had it not been for their care and 
service, he would have lost his eye. He was able to have surgery at the VA hospital and is delighted with the outcome”. 

“Tender Loving Care” – Capt. Hale, Callie McIntire & Jeremy Progner
Kristina Burch, yesterday evening Santiago and I responded to a call at 2317 Thunderbolt Peak Dr for a sick call. Upon our arrival on scene and speaking with 
family, the patient's daughter wanted to share a small story from prior. She stated that her mom passed away at their home in January and wanted to let us 
know how thankful she was for the crew that responded that day. She told us "the people who came were so compassionate and attentive to us and did 
everything they could to help save her; no words could ever describe how thankful we were for that and how much it has meant to us since". 

I'm not sure who this crew was, and she could not recall their names from that day. I wanted to inform you of this encounter because it shows the daily impact    
our department makes on the lives of others even when nobody is watching! 

“ESD has Some Good Medics” – Celianna Flores & Liz McDaneld
Alvin VFD Assistant Chief Glaves et al, the ESD has some good medics and kit on their ambulances. Shocked to see they have LUCAS CPR units. Oh, I’m aware. 
2024 emergency medicine focused on positive outcomes. Those two girls last night had a long road to there and did damned good solo for the size and space.

Job Well Done! – Callie McIntire, Corrin McCullough & Catherine Godden
Just wanted to drop a note and let you know how impressed I was with my trip to Methodist Hospital last Tuesday by way of your Emergency Services Team, M71 
Callie, Corrin and Cat. There is not enough words to say what an outstanding team you have in those three women. They were so caring and concerned and went 
above and beyond to keep my blood pressure and nausea under control. I was so impressed how they worked together as a team on what they could give me and 
how much.

Commendation for Outstanding Performance by BCESD #3 Crews – Capt. Chavez, Catherine Godden & Jeremy Progner
Captain Robert Kerber, Pearland Fire Department, Dear Chief Welch, I am writing to extend my sincerest commendation to the BCESD #3 crews, specifically 
Godden, Chavez, and Progner, for their exceptional professionalism and performance during a recent incident involving a 28-year-old female with a gunshot 
wound to the head. Despite the challenging and emotionally charged nature of the call, with the patient still breathing despite the extent of her injuries, your team 
remained cool, calm, and collected. Their ability to maintain such composure under pressure was truly remarkable. The scene management was exceptionally 
well-organized and structured, demonstrating a level of diligence and care that was both streamlined and efficient. They did not miss a beat in their execution of 
patient care.



One Team, One Vision, One Mission 
“Saving Lives”

“ A Life Saved” – Tyler Embrey & Merritt Boozer
Tyler Embrey, I am reaching out to let you know that on 10-6-25 a patient that myself and AEMT Boozer transfused. The patient wanted to express his gratitude for 
saving his life. Thank you for sending me the information about this and there is also a little more to the story. I believe that Memorial Hermann – TMC told you that 
if you had not transfused the patient that he would have died and they were impressed with the care. The crew saved this patient’s life You and Merritt saved this 
patient’s life.

“Shout out to Manvel EMS” – Lt. Taylor Cheek & Celianna Flores 
Facebook Posts from The Talk of Manvel:
Huge shout out to Manvel EMS for their quick response to get my butt off the floor again. They were the sweetest two people you’d ever hope to meet. The 
EMS/EMT were here in ten minutes. They gave us tips on how to transfer from the recliner to the wheelchair. I don’t know their names, but they know who they 
are.

This time last year they saved my life! After going into cardiac arrest at home they arrived in seven minutes after my husband called and was able to resuscitate. 
Thank you, EMS team

“Another Chance” – M71 Lt. Taylor Cheek & Merritt Boozer, M72 Celianna Flores & Jeremy Progner. Capt. Melissa Aldape
1-year-old female patient, victim of abuse and neglect. BCSO and Manvel PD were on scene on BCESD 3 EMS/M71 arrival. Manvel VFD responded with EMS.
The patient was in cardiac arrest, 2nd BCESD 3 ambulance/M72 requested to the scene. Both EMS crews began advanced life support resuscitative efforts;
Manvel FD drove for our crews. The patient was resuscitated/regained a pulse enroute to Memorial Hermann Pearland. The patient was critical, transferred to
Texas Children’s Hospital for further care. Now, the patient is doing well and will have a good outcome.

The Team at Texas Children’s Hospital as well as the Brazoria County District Attorney’s office could not say enough good things about the care this team 
delivered to save this patient’s life.

.



2025 EMS Division Operations Review

EMS Responses
• 2019 - 1959
• 2020 – 2222
• 2021 – 2696
• 2022 – 2617
• 2023 – 2954
• 2024 – 3419
• 2025 – 3730

• 9% Increase in Responses from 2024
• 311 Additional Responses in 2025

Revenue
• MVBA Collections - $14,553

• _-69% decrease from 2024
• EMS Billing - $1,423,923

• 39% revenue increase from 2024
• Overall EMS Billing & Collections Revenue 

2025
• $1,438,476

• 35% revenue increase from 2024

Capital Equipment Investment - $236,065
• Fluid & Blood Warmers - $18,513
• LP35 Cardiac Monitor - $82,543
• Stretchers & Accessories - $104,438
• Stair Chairs - $14,284
• Toughbook PCR/MDT Tablets - $14,341
• Narcotic Safe (SQ70) - $1,946

1959
2222

2696 2617
2954

3419
3730

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

BCESD 3 EMS Responses 
Year over Year 



2025 EMS Division Operations Accomplishments
Operations

• M73/Station 3 Staffed Full-Time - transitioned from part-time staffing to full-time staffing February 2025. M73 responded to 1067 calls for service in 2025.
• Billing & Collections Revenue Increase – 39% revenue increase from 2024 which is due in part to our new Administrative Assistant, Madeleine Pinder.
• Administrative Assistant, Madeleine Pinder was hired to assist with billing and documentation quality assurance as well as EMS administration coordination. 
• Maximize Electronic Platform Operability – this project is ongoing but significant progress has been made to ensure that the EMS Division is getting maximum 

benefit from all electronic platforms.
• BCESD 3 Policy and Procedures Revision – this project is ongoing, but several policies have been revised over the past year to streamline EMS Division 

operations.
• MCI Plan Development – the EMS Division participated in several “Active Shooter” tabletop exercises and training this past year. The MCI Plan Development is 

a continual work in progress.
• First Responder Program Development (BLS) – the EMS Division has worked with Manvel VFD and with Iowa Colony in development of their First Responder 

Programs. At the end of December work was completed on the 2026 BCESD 3 EMS Patient Care Guidelines to aid the MVFD and ICVFD in obtaining their 
Texas Department of State Health Services licensure.

Public Relations
• BCESD 3 EMS participated in 70 public relations events during 2025, 19% increase from 2024

• AISD Graduation – 4 ceremonies
• AISD Football Games - 18
• Public Events – 48

Staff Development
• Chief Lammert & Captain Aldape completed their first year of the Medical Transport Leadership Institute in pursuit of their Certified Medical Transport Executive 

certification.
• Three Advanced EMT’s completed their Paramedic training and are now National Registered Paramedics. The EMS Division now has 23 Paramedics, 19 full-

time and 4 part-time. It is the most Paramedics that the department has ever had. Most of the time the ambulances are dual Paramedic staffed 24/7.
• Four Division employees attended TEMSA EMS Evolution which is a leadership focused educational offering.

Safety
• EVOC training completed for all EMS Division employees.
• Each staff meeting has a “Safety” Moment focusing on operational and clinical safety opportunities.



2025 EMS Division Clinical Accomplishments
2026 Patient Care Guidelines Published

• The Patient Care Guidelines were completely revised to ensure consistency and enhanced treatment modalities. Some of the enhanced treatment 
modalities included:

• New stroke assessment tools.
• New medications (Dexamethasone, Tranexamic Acid (TXA).
• Liquid Plasma administration for head injuries with a Glasgow Coma Score of 12 or less.

Clinical Education
• Cadaver Lab – completed by all EMS Division employees, this is an annual training requirement.
• Annual Competency Evaluation - completed by all Division employees, credentialing requirement.
• 12-Lead EKG Training – completed by all Division employees.
• Stryker Lifepak 35 Training completed by all Division employees.
• ALERRT – AAIR Training 
• STOP the Bleed – completed by all Division employees
• Blood Program Refresher Training – completed by all Division employees.



BCESD 3 EMS Division 
2025 Year-End Data



2025 Responses



2025 Transports



2025 Calls for Service



2025 Blood Program Data

2

14

2

14

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

2024 2025

BCESD 3 EMS Division
Blood Products Transfused

Liquid Plasma

Red Blood Cells

0 2 2 0 0
3

0
3 2 3

0 1

16

0
1 2

0 0

2

0

3
2

3

0
1

14

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

BCESD 3 EMS Division
Transfused Patients

2025

Transfused Patients

Potential Transfusion Candidates



BCESD 3 EMS Division 
2026 Initiatives



2026 Operations Initiatives 
1. Station 2 LOS Remodeling

2. EMS Footprint Expansion Development
• New North Station (Pomona/Sedona).

3. Safe Ambulance Operation – Decreasing Use of Lights and Sirens
• The National Association of EMS Physicians and the then National Association of State EMS Directors created a position statement on emergency

medical vehicle use of lights and siren in 1994 (1).
• The Red Lights and Sirens (RLS) Position Statement emphasizes the need for careful consideration in the use of emergency lights and sirens by

EMS providers. While RLS can expedite response times, they are also linked to increased risks of collisions and injuries for both EMS personnel
and the public.

• Texas Department of State Health Services is encouraging EMS services to begin developing standard operating procedures and clinical protocols to
decrease the use of lights and sirens for non-acute calls.

4. Commission on Accreditation of Ambulance Services (CAAS) Accreditation
• Start Accreditation Process:

• Establish CAAS Accreditation Committee to lead accreditation process.

5. Complete revision of  BCESD 3 EMS Division Policies & Procedures
• Separate EMS policies from overall BCESD 3 operations.

6. MCI Development
• Active Shooter patient care guideline & policy development.
• EMS Division field training day.

7. Public Relations
• Stop the Bleed training for local residential communities.
• CPR training for local residential communities.
• Stop the Bleed & CPR training for our local police and fire departments.
• W.H.A.L.E. (We Have A Little Emergency) Car Seat Identification Program.



2026 Clinical Services Initiatives 
1. EMStat Pedi App. Deployment

2. Point of Care Ultrasound Training – Supervisors

3. Whole Blood Program
• Potential new funding from TDSHS for blood program expansion.

4. Enhanced Communication Tools for Special Needs Patients – Special Needs Patients

5. Patient Care Guideline Enhancement
• Continued evidenced based clinical care enhancements.

6. Pre-Hospital Optimal Lactate Resuscitation Study (POLR)
• Continue protocol development.
• Multi-center agency trial – identify potential study participants.
• Identify study principal investigators.
• IRB approval.
• Secure funding source(s).



One Team, One Vision, One Mission 
“Saving Lives”



Agenda 
Item 14 



BCESD 3 Fire Division Report

January 12, 2026



Fire Division Updates

• Bids for Landscaping

• Contracts signed and returned with exception to City of 

Alvin

Completed

In Process
• BCESD 3 FRO Program

• Annual Bunker Gear Inspection & Cleaning- January ’26

• Bid process started in October for SCBA Maintenance, 

Hose Testing, Ladder Testing, PPE Cleaning & Inspection

• ISO Plan for Liverpool



Fire Division Update

• Manvel Engine 121
• Rust Repairs completed

• Demi John Engine 2203
• Auto Eject installed
• Air Eject installed
• TIC installed
• Air Pump removed
• Replaced Gauges

• Demi John Tanker
• Installed radio
• Installed 4” discharge

• Demi John 2206
• Auto Eject installed
• Air Eject installed

• Demi John 2204
• Tool Box Lights
• Auto Charger installed

Fleet Update



Fire Division Update

• Demi John 
• Nothing to report

• Iowa Colony 
• Meridiana

• Gas Leak- Repeat
• Guardian System Valve broken
• Generator Repair
• Exit Light Wiring corrected
• Breaker box surge protector ordered
• Bids for AC Leaks in storage room
• Bay Door repairs
• Unclogged Roof Drains

• CR 65
• Nothing to report

• CR 143
• New toilet ordered

• Manvel Station 1
• Bay Door Repairs & Preventative Maintenance

• Danbury
• Nothing to report

• Liverpool
• Bids for heaters & bay extension

• BCESD 3 EMS Station 1
• Quarterly Septic Inspection
• Clean up of dead trees in the rear of building

• BCESD 3 EMS- Lakes of Savannah
• Toilet Paper Lock repaired

Facility Update



Fire Division Update

• Manvel
• Nothing to report

• Iowa Colony
• Nothing to report

• Rosharon
• Nothing to report

• Danbury 
• Nothing to report

• CR 143
• New hose ordered
• Office Supplies
• Boots

• Liverpool
• E-Cutters sent out for repair
• New Vent Saw Purchased

• Demi John
• Dual certification PPE
• Boots
• SCBA Mask-small
• Bunker Gear- 1 set
• Red Line Order for booster reel

• Apparatus & Equipment
• New Pumpers Estimated Final in April
• Obtaining specs for Rosharon Tanker/Engine

Logistics Update Committee Updates



BCESD 3 Fire Division- December 2025

202

166

213

141

193

159

175

199

164

147

191 191

0

50

100

150

200

250

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Total Number of Calls- 1906 YTD

Total Number of Calls- 1906 YTD

Excludes Alvin & Angleton Data



124

104
99

106

148

131

219

148

136

158
166

183

202

166

213

141

193

159

175

199

164

147

191 191

0

50

100

150

200

250

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2024-2025

2024 2025

District Fire Responses 2024-2025 Comparison

Excludes Alvin, & Angleton Fire Data



BCESD 3 Fire Division- December 2025

4

17

0

41

11

118

0
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

CR 143 Danbury Demi John Iowa Colony Liverpool Manvel Rosharon

Number of Responses

Number of Responses



Response Times

14.39
14.00

11.30

7.00

10.30
10.00 10.00

17.31

12.00

13.30

7.00

9.00

10.48
10.00

16.52

9.00

16.30

8.00

6.00

10.16 10.00

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

CR 143 Danbury Demi John Iowa Colony Liverpool Manvel Rosharon

Median Response Times in Minutes & Seconds

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4



Responses

48

68

17

42

12

99

18

335

58

60

39

12

27

6

117

10

269

52

55 51

11
36

10

115

12

288

66

20

49

7

129

19

301

4

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Alvin Angleton CR 143 Danbury Demi John Iowa Colony Liverpool Manvel Rosharon

Number of Responses by Quarter

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4



Questions?



Agenda 
Item 15 







Agenda 
Item 16 



No 
Documentation 

for this Item 



Agenda 
Item 17 



No 
Documentation 

for this Item 



Agenda 
Item 18 



No 
Documentation 

for this Item 


	Agenda Item 13 - EMS Report 01.12.2026 YER.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	                 BCESD 3 EMS In Action
	One Team, One Vision, One Mission “Saving Lives”
	One Team, One Vision, One Mission “Saving Lives”
	2025 EMS Division Operations Review
	   2025 EMS Division Operations Accomplishments
	   2025 EMS Division Clinical Accomplishments
	BCESD	3 EMS Division 2025 Year-End Data
	         2025 Responses
	             2025 Transports
	        2025 Calls for Service
	     2025 Blood Program Data
	BCESD 3 EMS Division 2026	Initiatives
	2026 Operations Initiatives 
	2026 Clinical Services Initiatives 
	Slide Number 16

	Agenda Item 14 -  Fire BOC Meeting 01.12.26.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Fire Division Updates
	Slide 3: Fire Division Update
	Slide 4: Fire Division Update
	Slide 5: Fire Division Update
	Slide 6: BCESD 3 Fire Division- December 2025
	Slide 7
	Slide 8: BCESD 3 Fire Division- December 2025
	Slide 9: Response Times
	Slide 10: Responses
	Slide 11




